SPECIAL SELECTBOARD MEETING May 6, 2021 Minutes

Present: Bill Cleary (chair) Lee McClenny Dave Baczewski Callie Hamdy Greg Barrows Nanette Rogers

| Guests: | Kim Guidry | Ira Allen |
|---------|---------------|-------------|
| | Koi Boynton | Seth Jensen |
| | Mark Letorney | Liz Curry |

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was held via Zoom. All attendees attended remotely.

CHANGES TO AGENDA

Added meetings with Planning Commission and reopening of Town Office.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

REVIEW & DISCUSSION: SUBMISSION OF A NORTHERN BORDER REGIONAL COMMISSION ECONOMIC INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT

Koi Boynton from the Planning Commission was present. She explained that the Northern Borders Regional Planning Commission encompasses New Hampshire, Maine, and Vermont and they work with the governors of those states to secure funding. The Planning Commission is looking to apply for a portion of the Wastewater Systems grants at \$450,000 which would require a 50% match.

Seth Jensen was also present and explained that the match money could be pulled from the revolving fund. It would mean the Town would not have to come up with the full amount of money in a single year, but they would have to work with the revolving fund people to make sure it works correctly. The State Revolving Loan Fund is the core funding source for wastewater funding in the state of Vermont and is a mix of state and federal money. The more non-loan funds Westford can secure, less would need to be covered in the budget from a tax standpoint. The goal is to keep taxpayer spending to a minimum. Lee asked where the rest of the money would come from, because this would not cover all the needed costs. Seth explained that they are looking into federal money the state is set to receive for infrastructure. The Planning Commission feels Westford is well poised for those funds, but it is a bit unknown at the moment.

Dave wanted clarification that this was the full NBR application and asked if the Town had selected a design as directed. The Planning Commission decided on the third option that involved pre-treatment; this decision was based on funding. Seth explained that ultimately the decision on the type of design is based on what is funded and what the appetite is. In terms of this program the reason the pre-treatment option was selected is because this program tends to prefer discrete area, and this was the area that had clear economic value. Dave just wanted to make sure we are not misleading the community by picking the most expensive option without public input, although it is likely the best plan for the project. He would prefer a

Special Selectboard Meeting May 6, 2021 Page 2

more formal decision on this to help keep things transparent. Koi explained she thinks we have a funding source (Northern Borders), and based on what has happened in nearby communities, they will be willing to work with us even if the project changes. Ultimately, they want projects completed.

Bill also would like a more formal vote. He does not have a particular objection with the pretreatment but was concerned with the yearly expense of the system. Seth agrees with Bill, we are in an awkward position where the timing of this application is before when we would do the next phase of soil testing to see how much capacity the pre-treatment will add. Regarding the annual cost if the pre-treatment system allows enough additional users, specifically commercial users, it is possible the calculation will work out so it is not more for the individual taxpayer, but the Town will not know that until the summer.

Mark Letorney explained that there is no doubt there is a funding gap in Vermont and we are trying to raise two to three million dollars' worth of funding for this system. The state has eight million dollars waiting to be obligated to infrastructure projects in small towns. Westford is well primed to receive those funds. The big municipalities are also gunning for these funds because of their aging infrastructure. Word has been received that the ARPA money, including the eight million dollars, will be contributed specifically to rural municipalities. The Planning Commission is working strategically to put Westford at the top of the list for the ARPA funds, signing on to Northern Borders shows that Westford is committed to a municipal wastewater system. There is no way the Town could bring this to the public and hope to have a wastewater system approved unless the bond and the operation and maintenance costs are realistic. That is why Westford must get as much of this money as we can. We can never ask the Town for more money than it can afford so if Westford does not get the funds, the project will not move forward.

Lee asked what is the realistic chance we will get two million dollars? Mark could not answer that, but Westford is the only small village wastewater system in the state of Vermont that is near shovel ready. It all depends on how the legislature wants to spend the money.

Nanette thanked the Planning Commission for their hard work on this daunting task. She asked what happens if the voters do not approve a bond vote? How much money would the Town be out if that happened? Koi explained that if a match is not secured the funds would simply be relocated elsewhere. Currently they are using the Planning Commission special project funds and money from the Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC) for brownfields and planning grants.

Lee asked when it would be reasonable to hear back from the state on how much money Westford might get out of the ARPA funds? It occurs to him that it will be a lot easier to sell the project to voters if we know that amount. He does not think a bond issue is a done deal.

Bill would prefer if the Board can push off deciding on this until the next meeting, so they have time to digest the information. Both Lee and Dave are in favor of the project, but they also agreed that they would prefer more information and would like to tighten the processes between the Planning Commission and Selectboard before it is brought before the voters. It is the right project for Westford, we just need to set things up for success. Dave however was comfortable deciding tonight. Lee thinks more Selectboard and Planning Commission integration on this is needed, a subject that will be addressed later in the meeting. Lee was also comfortable making a decision tonight.

Special Selectboard Meeting May 6, 2021 Page 3

Lee McClenny made a motion that the Selectboard approve an application to the Northern Border's Regional Commission (NBRC) in an amount up to \$459,000 for the future wastewater system for the Town of Westford and designate Bill Cleary to have executive permission relating to the signature of all documents associated with the submission of the application as well as future NBRC contract documents, should the project be selected for funding, seconded by Dave Baczewski. Motion passed: 3-0.

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS

The Selectboard and Planning Commission discussed meeting times between the two boards. Some items could be handled in a regular meeting, but subjects requiring longer discussion are better suited to special meetings.

REOPENING OF TOWN OFFICE

Nanette explained that she looked at the Vermont Forward Plan for reopening. Reopening the town office falls within group A which is for low contact. This would allow people to come in and drop off taxes or dog licenses for example. Town staff currently working in the office are vaccinated. If we open residents would be limited to the counter and any researchers would still be limited to one at a time by appointment. She feels it is time to open back up, it would be easier for office employees if we did so. Bill was in favor if the town employees are comfortable. Dave was in support as was Lee. No motion needed.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 8:13 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Bill Cleary, Chair Selectboard

Callie Hamdy Assistant Town Clerk/Minute Clerk